
PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
 W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485-9226 | Email: sharon.jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

 
AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

Wednesday, November 20, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. 
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

  
1. Call to Order – Chairperson Kim O’Connell 
2. Approval of Agenda 
3. Approval of minutes for November 6, 2019 
4. Public Comments – 3 minutes per person – not to exceed 30 minutes total 
5. Receipt of Information on Matters Noticed from Supervisors not Seated as 

Committee Members 
6. Tax Delinquent Properties 

a. Update Regarding Tax Delinquent Properties 
PUBLIC HEARING 

The Polk County Environmental Services Committee will hold consecutive 
public hearings on the following zoning district change and Polk County 
Outdoor Recreation Plan on Wednesday November 20, 2019, beginning at 
10:00 A.M. at the Government Center County Board Room, Balsam Lake, 
Wisconsin: 
A. Perry Prax: Requests a rezone from Agricultural 20 (A-2) to 
Agricultural 10 (A-1).  Property affected is: 904 75th St, Lot 1, CSM #6985, 
Sec 14/T33N/R16W, Town of Lincoln, parcel #032-00327-0000, 23.14 
acres. 
B. Polk County 2020-2024 Outdoor Recreation Plan 

7.  Parks, Recreation and Trails, and Dams 
a. Trails update 
b. Update Regarding Atlas Dam 
c. Update on Trail Consultant 
d. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Resolution No. 48-19:  

Resolution to Adopt the 2020 -2024 Polk County Outdoor Recreation Plan  
8. Forestry 

a. DNR Update County Forest Law 
9. Zoning 

a. Review and Discussion Regarding Updates to Shoreland Zoning Ordinance 
10. Zoning and Land & Water 

a. Updates Regarding Development of CAFO Ordinance 
b. Review Land and Water Resource Management Plan implementation report, 

and presentation, to Land and Water Conservation Board 

1

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

11. Review and discussion of Functional Areas assigned to the Committee for the 
Purpose of scheduling Program Evaluation of Functional Assigned Areas  

12. Committee Calendar and  Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming 
Meetings 

13. Adjourn 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Items on the agenda not necessarily presented in the order listed. This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin 
State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s 
office (715-485-9226) at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be 
made. Requests are confidential. 

2



1 
 

PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S         

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson @co.polk.wi.us 

MINUTES 
Environmental Services Committee 

Government Center County Board Room 
        100 Polk County Plaza Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

              9:00 A.M. Wednesday, November 6, 2019 

Member Attendance                                                    

Attendee Name Title Status 
Kim O’Connell Chair Present 
Tracy LaBlanc Supervisor Present 
Doug Route Supervisor Present 
Brad Olson Vice Chair Absent 
Jim Edgell Supervisor Present 
Lyle Doolittle FSA Representative Present 

  
Also present were Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Malia Malone,  Interim County 
Administrator; Joseph Loso, Interim Corporation Counsel;  Emil Norby, Highway Commissioner;  
Jason Kjeseth, Zoning Administrator; Tim Anderson, County Planner; Kristen Bruder, Area 
Extension Director; Scott Geddes, Land and Water Engineer; Steve Geiger, Interim Zoning 
Director; Ben Elfelt, Parks and Trails Coordinator; and members of the public.                                                      

Meeting called to order by Chair O’Connell at 9:00 A.M. 

Approval of Agenda- Chair O’Connell called for a motion to approve the agenda. Motion 
(Edgell/Route) to approve the agenda, carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Approval of Minutes – Chair O’Connell called for a motion to approve the minutes of the 
October 23, 2019 meeting.  Motion (LaBlanc/Route) to approve the minutes of the October 23, 
2019 meeting as published carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Public Comment – No public comment was received by the Committee 

Receipt of Information from Supervisors not seated as Committee Members on Matters 
Noticed – No information was received.  
 
Updates/Review of Division of Extension Job Positions – Chair O’Connell recognized Extension 
Director Kristen Bruder for the purpose of receiving information and answering questions 
regarding the Extension Community Development position. Kristen will introduce all Extension 
employees at a committee meeting in early 2020.  
 
 

3

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

Budget Report and Final Technical Amendments to 2020 Operating and Capital Budget -  Chair 
O’Connell recognized Interim Administrator Malone for the purpose of receiving information 
regarding technical amendments to the 2020 Operating and Capital Budget.  The committee 
received information that there are no technical amendments that need approval. 
 
Review County Owned Property Listing 
 
Chair O’Connell stated the Committee is assigned to review the County owned property listing 
annually and asked that an annual review of County owned property be added to the 2020 
workplan in the month of August. Committee discussed County owned property listing, but 
made no recommendations regarding County owned properties.  
 
Tax Delinquent Properties 
 
Update regarding Woodley Property:  The committee received information from Interim Zoning 
Director Steve Geiger that the Certified Survey Map of Woodley Property will be reviewed by 
the Apple River Planning Commission followed by the Apple River Town Board on December 9 
to receive approval before the map can be recorded.  
 
Chair O’Connell recognized Highway Commissioner Emil Norby for the purpose of receiving 
information regarding tax delinquent properties. One tax deed property in the Village of Clear 
Lake is for sale on Wisconsin Surplus website with online bids closing on 11/27/19. 
 
Forestry 
  
Committee received an update from Steve Geiger regarding the status of the Sterling Tower.  
Re-evaluation request regarding tower was sent to DNR by the historical society. 
 
Parks, Recreation, Trails, and Dams 
 
Trails update:  Committee received information from Parks and Trails Coordinator Ben Elfelt 
and County Planner Tim Anderson regarding progress on the trail plan. The consultant will be 
compiling and finishing the trail analysis for the 4 options for trail use with anticipated 
completion this week.  
 
Outdoor Recreation Plan update:  Chair O’Connell recognized Parks and Trails Coordinator Ben 
Elfelt for the purpose of receiving an update on the Outdoor Recreation Plan. Parks and Trails 
Coordinator Elfelt noted that Public Hearing regarding the Outdoor Recreation Plan is 
scheduled for the November 20, 2019 Environmental Services Committee meeting. 
 
Update regarding Atlas Dam: The Committee received an update regarding the Atlas Dam from 
Parks and Trails Coordinator Ben Elfelt and Land and Water Engineer Scott Geddes.  Land and 
Water Engineer Geddes completed the Atlas Dam inspection and forwarded the paperwork to 
the DNR. Per Scott Geddes, the DNR will establish repairs needed and the timeline for repairs. 
Application for dam repair grants are due at the end of February.  

4



3 
 

 
Zoning 
Chairman O’Connell recognized Jason Kjeseth, Zoning Administrator for the purpose of 
providing information to the committee regarding Resolution No. 51-19: Resolution to Approve 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment for the Town of St Croix Falls. Discussion 
 
Chair O’Connell called for a motion in regard to Resolution No. 51-19.  
Motion (LaBlanc/Edgell) to approve Resolution No. 51-19 and recommend for passage to the 
County Board. Chair O’Connell called for a voice vote regarding said motion. Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chair O’Connell recognized Jason Kjeseth, Zoning Administrator for the purpose of providing 
information to the committee regarding the Preliminary Plat of Balsam Wood in the Town of 
Milltown. Per Kjeseth, all information regarding the preliminary plat has been received and 
complies with County ordinances. Approval of the plat has been received from Village of Balsam 
Lake and Town of Milltown.  Plat of Balsam Wood utilizes the conservation design 
development. Approval of the Plat of Balsam Wood has been submitted to the State of 
Wisconsin and State approval is pending. After State approval the Plat will require final 
approval by the Environmental Services Committee. 
Chair O’Connell called for a motion in regard to approval of the preliminary Plat of Balsam 
Wood. Motion (Route/Edgell) to approve preliminary Plat of Balsam Wood. Chair O’Connell 
called for a voice vote regarding said motion. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Consideration of Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendments Related to CAFOs 
 
Committee received information from Zoning Administrator Kjeseth regarding possible wording 
that could be used in the Polk County Comprehensive Land Use Ordinance for CAFO provisions.  
 
Chairman O’Connell recognized Land & Water Director Tim Ritten, who was not present, but 
provided a written update to the committee regarding the Land and Water Department and 
progress on CAFO research.  
 
Updates from Ritten were as follows: 

• Read 2 more scientific reports on CAFO’s 
• Spoke with 1 media and 4 members of the public regarding CAFO’s 
• Soil and groundwater susceptibility maps being developed 
• Follow up on a manure spill in SE Polk County 
• Revised position description for current vacancy in Land and Water Resources 

Department 
 
Next Meeting:  Wednesday, November 20, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. Agenda items: 
Parks, Recreation, Trails and Dams: Trails updates, Update regarding Atlas Dam,  
Tax delinquent properties: Update and Progress,  
Forestry: Sterling Tower update, Public Hearing regarding Outdoor Recreation Plan, Resolution 
No. 48-19: Outdoor Recreation Plan Resolution  

5



4 
 

 
Public Hearing at 10:00 a.m. – Town of Lincoln and Outdoor Recreation Plan 
Zoning:  Review and Update Shoreland Zoning Ordinance 
Zoning & Land Information: CAFO Moratorium Development Updates. 
 
First meeting of month in December 2019 at 9:00 a.m. Agenda items: 
Parks, Recreation, Trails and Dams: Trails updates, Update regarding Atlas Dam,  
Tax delinquent properties: Update and Progress, Review and Approve High Bid for Clear Lake 
Tax Deed Property Online Auction Sale through Wisconsin Surplus  
Forestry: Sterling Tower update,  
Zoning & Land Information: CAFO Moratorium Development Updates. 
 
Second meeting of month- Wednesday, December 18, 2019 at 9:00 a.m: 
Tax Deed Properties Update and Progress, Tax delinquent properties: Update and Possible 
Action on Woodley property, Updates on other tax delinquent properties/sales, Zoning: Public 
Hearing on Shoreland Zoning, Review and Update Shoreland Zoning Ordinance 
 
AGENDA ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON EACH AGENDA:  Zoning & Land Information: CAFO Moratorium 
Development Work Updates, Parks, Recreation, Trails and Dams: Trails updates, Update 
regarding Atlas Dam, Tax delinquent properties: Update and Possible Action Woodley property, 
Updates on other tax delinquent properties/sales, Forestry: Sterling Tower update 
 
Chairman O’Connell called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Edgell/Route) to adjourn. Motion 
carried by unanimous voice vote.  Chair O’Connell declared meeting adjourned at 9:34 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

Sharon Jorgenson 
County Clerk  
 

 

 

 

6



ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 

2019 WORK PLAN 

Date Scheduled Agenda Items Program Evaluation/Upcoming Issues 
January 
 
 
 

• Finalize 2019 Work Plan 
• Timber Sales 
• Wildlife damage crop prices 

• Rules of Order 
review/suggested changes –
Jan thru May 

February 
 
 
 

• Tree Replacement schedule 
• Wildlife damage/Crop Claims 

• Governor’s Budget & impact 

March 
 
 

  

April 
 
 

 
• Tax Deed Listings 

 

May 
 
 
 

• Review of repairs on dams 
owned by Polk County  

• Business Analysis of Lime 
Quarry 

• Budget Development – end of 
May 

June 
 
 

• Annual Report Receipt 
• Tax Deed Update (1st mtg) 
• Set Prices for tax deed sales (2nd 

mtg) 

• Lime Quarry Analysis 
 

July 
 
 

• Annual Reports – Tourism 
review 

 

August 
 
 

• Review/Revise Comprehensive 
Forest Plan 

• Land and Water Public Hearing 

 

September 
 
 

  

October 
 
 

• Budgets/Budget amendments 
• Annual Forestry Plan 

 

November 
 

  
 
 

December 
 

• Develop 2020 Work Plan   

 

7



 
Land and Water Conservation Board 

County Land and Water Resource Management Plan  
Review of LWRM Plan Revisions  

County:        
 
Implementation Covering Past Five Years and Future Directions 
 
Answer these four questions in writing (not to exceed 4 pages) 
 

1. Provide a representative number of accomplishments within the last five years that can be 
directly traced to activities identified in multiple work plans.  For each accomplishment, 
explain how the planning process helped the county achieve its outcome, including 
planning adjustments that helped better target county activities. 
      
 
    

2. Identify any areas where the county was unable to make desired progress in 
implementing activities identified in recent work plans.  For each area identified, explain 
the work plan adjustments that were made to refocus planned activities.  If no areas are 
identified, explain how the county was able to make progress in all the areas planned.  
 
      
 
 

3. Describe the county’s approach to implementation of its priority farm strategy including 
outreach, farm inventories and making use of multiple funding sources.  How has the 
county evaluated the effectiveness of its priority farm strategy and used this information 
to improve implementation of the agricultural performance standards and conservation 
practices on farms?    
 
      
 

4. Provide representative examples that show changes in direction in the county’s LWRM 
plan and annual work plans, with specific examples provided showing adjustments in 
goals, objectives or planned activities. 

 
      

 
 

Annual Work Plans 
 
Attach both of the following:   

 
a. The most current annual work plan, prepared in the current format from DATCP, and 

addresses all required items such as needed funding and staff hours.  
 

8



b. The work plan for the previous year that includes a column that identifies the progress 
in implementing the planned activities for that year.  

 
Presentation Regarding County Resource Concerns   

 
Prepare and present an 8-10 minute snapshot to the board regarding county resources and 
management issues.  The county must prepare one of following as part of this brief presentation:  

a. A PowerPoint (showing what your county looks like, can include maps), or  
b. A hand out (2 page max)  

 
Guidance on Board Review Process  

 
The LWCB’s review supplements, but does not replace compliance with the DATCP checklist 
for LWRM plan approval.  This encourages and supports honest presentations from the county. 
The county is strongly encouraged to have the LCC chair or committee member be a part of the 
presentation to the Board to contribute policy and other insights to the discussion. The goal of 
the review is not to fail counties. The board recognizes the dynamic nature of the planning 
process. Board members are interested in how counties tackle priorities over time and how they 
respond to changing conditions in pursuing their priorities. The board will evaluate a county’s 
planning and implementation based on how well the county balances and prioritizes the 
following: agricultural performance standards, other state priorities (impaired waters, FPP 
checks), and local priorities. When needed, the Board will provide constructive support to 
counties to improve the quality of their planning. 
 
Land Conservation Committee Notification  
 
The LCC was provided a completed copy of this form (including attachments) on:       
 
 
Signature of Authorized Representative: __________________________Date: __________ 
(e.g. County Conservationist, LCC chair) 
 

 
 

Send completed form and attachments to: 
Lisa.Trumble@wi.gov 

  
 

9

mailto:Lisa.Trumble@wi.gov


10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130


	ES Minutes 11-6-19
	2019 ES Work Plan-updated 6.5.19
	ES Land & Water Implementation Report Plan Revision Review Form Final
	Res 48-19 and Outdoor Rec Plan



